
 

 

AGENDA  

LAKE MINNETONKA CONSERVATION DISTRICT 

Wednesday, September 27, 2023 

Wayzata City Hall 

600 Rice Street, Wayzata, MN 55391 

 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

Those attending the meeting, please complete the attendance sheet. Those desiring to participate in the 

meeting should complete the Public Comment Form at the meeting if the online Public Comment Form 

was not submitted. The Chair may choose to reorder the agenda for a specific agenda item if it would 

benefit the needs of those in attendance. Please see Public Comments Section for more information. 

 

WORK SESSION AGENDA 

6:00 p.m. 
 

 
The purpose of the Work Session is to allow staff to seek input from the Board and for the Board to discuss 

matters in greater detail than generally available at the formal Board Session. The Board may give staff 

direction or express a preference but does not formally vote on matters during Work Sessions. While all 

meetings of the Board are open to the public, Work Session discussions are generally limited to the Board, 

staff, and designated representatives. Work Sessions are not videotaped. The work session may be continued 

after the formal meeting, time permitting. 

 

Work Session at 6:00 pm: 

• AIS Management Options with Eric Evenson 

 

FORMAL MEETING AGENDA 

7:00 p.m. 

 
The purpose of the Formal Session is to allow the Board to conduct public hearings and to consider and 

take formal action on matters coming before the LMCD. 

  

1) CALL TO ORDER 

2) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

3) ROLL CALL 

4) APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

5) CHAIR ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

6) APPROVAL OF MINUTES (09/13/2023 LMCD Regular Board Meeting) 

https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/LMCDSpeaker


  

LMCD Board Meeting 

September 27, 2023 

Page 2 

7) APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 

A) Audit of Vouchers (09/16/2023 – 09/30/2023) 

B) Findings of Fact and Order for Variance, 4290 Cottonwood Lane 

C) Findings of Fact and Order for Wayzata Panoway Project 

 

8) PUBLIC COMMENTS – Provides an opportunity for the public to address the board on items 

that are not on the agenda. Public comments are limited to 5 minutes. Please direct all comments 

to the Board Chair. The Board generally will not engage in public discussion, respond to or 

correct statements from the public, or act on items not on the agenda. The Board may ask for 

clarifications or direct staff to report back on items at future meetings. 

 

9) PRESENTATIONS 

 

10) PUBLIC HEARING 

A) Meadowbrook Boat Club 

 

11) OTHER BUSINESS 

 

12) OLD BUSINESS 

 

13) NEW BUSINESS 

 

14) TREASURER REPORT 

 

15) EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR UPDATE 

A) Special Permits Process 

 

16) ADJOURNMENT 
 



 

 

ITEM 6 

LAKE MINNETONKA CONSERVATION DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

7:00 P.M., September 13, 2023 
Wayzata City Hall 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER   
 
 Chair Hoelscher called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3. ROLL CALL 
 Members present: Ann Hoelscher, Victoria; Jake Walesch, Deephaven; Rich Anderson, Orono; Kristi 

Conrad, Greenwood; Dan Baasen, Wayzata; Ben Brandt, Mound; Gabriel Jabbour, Spring Park; Dennis 
Klohs, Minnetonka Beach; Mark Kroll, Excelsior; Denny Newell, Woodland; Nicole Stone, Minnetonka; and 
Deborah Zorn, Shorewood. Also present: Joe Langel, LMCD Legal Counsel; Thomas Tully, Manager of Code 
Enforcement; Maisyn Reardan, Office and Finance Manager; Raina Arntson, Executive Assistant Code 
Enforcement and Operations; and Interim Executive Director Jim Brimeyer. 

 
 Members absent:   Mike Kirkwood, Minnetrista; and Ryan Nellis, Tonka Bay. 
 
 Persons in Audience: Tony Jewitt, Craig Weinstock, Miriam Goldfein, Kenneth Kloock, James Ronning, 

Sandra Swenson, Jeffrey Dahl, Johanna Mouton, Robert Williams, Eric Evenson 
 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
MOTION: Kroll moved; Stone seconded to approve the agenda as submitted. 

 
VOTE: Motion carried unanimously. 

 
5. CHAIR ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

A) Bill Cook Recognition  
 
Chair Hoelscher recognized Cook, thanking him for his service from 2017 to 2023, noting his resignation. She 
highlighted some of the items that Cook assisted with during his time on the Board. She noted that 
Greenwood has appointed a successor to the LMCD and welcomed her.  
 
Langel administered the Oath of Office to Kristi Conrad. 
 
Conrad joined the Board for the meeting and introduced herself.  
 
B) Other 
 
Hoelscher welcomed back Baasen, noting that his presence had been missed.  
 
Baasen commented that it is nice to be back. 



Lake Minnetonka Conservation District 
Regular Board Meeting 
September 13, 2023                                                Page 2 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Hoelscher noted that they are also pleased to have Brimeyer present tonight. 
 

6. APPROVAL OF MINUTES - 08/09/2023 LMCD Regular Board Meeting 
 
MOTION: Zorn moved; Stone seconded to approve the 08/09/2023 LMCD Regular Board Meeting minutes 

as submitted. 
 

VOTE: Ayes (11), Abstained (2), (Baasen and Conrad). Motion carried. 
 
7. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 

    
MOTION: Walesch moved; Brandt seconded to approve the consent agenda as presented. Items so approved 

included: 7A) Audit of Vouchers (08/16/2023 – 08/31/2023); and 7B) Audit of Vouchers (09/01/2023 – 
09/15/2023). 

 
VOTE: Motion carried unanimously. 

 
8. PUBLIC COMMENTS - Persons in attendance, subjects not on the agenda (limited to 5 minutes) 
 
 There were no public comments. 
 
9.    PRESENTATIONS 
 
       There were no presentations. 
 
10. PUBLIC HEARING 

 
A) 4290 Cottonwood Lane Variance  
 
Tully presented a variance request for the property at 4290 Cottonwood Lane. He identified the location of the 
property on an aerial map and stated that the applicant’s current dock does not meet the LMCD standards 
although it has been in place for many years. He noted that the current dock is 90 feet in length and 
encroaches over the western side site line. The applicant is asking for a length variance to reach a more 
navigable water depth as well as a setback reduction due to conflicting dock use areas. He commented on the 
abnormal site conditions as the site is located on a large sand bar. He noted that the neighboring properties in 
the area are also out of LMCD compliance. He provided a summary of the application proposal and displayed 
the proposed site plan. He reviewed the characteristics of the site and provided an overview of the subject 
property compared to the other docks in the area. He noted that the proposed structure would be very similar 
to the other docks in this area. He reviewed the variance standards and related findings. He noted that there 
were no comments received from public agencies. He stated that one comment was received from a 
neighboring property supporting the request. He stated that staff recommends approval based on the 
conditions included in the packet.  



Lake Minnetonka Conservation District 
Regular Board Meeting 
September 13, 2023                                                Page 3 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Newell referenced the statement that other properties in this area are out of compliance and asked if that 
complicates this decision. 
 
Tully replied that he reviews the Code when considering a variance and there have been zero-foot setbacks 
when there are conflicting dock uses areas. He stated that he does not believe that this configuration would 
impact any of the neighboring properties.  
 
Hoelscher opened the public hearing at 7:22 p.m.  
 
Tony Jewitt, 4290 Cottonwood Lane, thanked the Board and staff for considering his request. He stated that 
he is attempting to bring his dock into compliance and noted that they have enjoyed living at the property for 
the past ten years. He stated that there are difficulties with the converging lot lines and shallow water depth. 
He noted that he has worked with LMCD staff on this for the past two years to determine the best method to 
move forward. He commented that this is not a perfect solution, but he is comfortable with what is proposed.  
 
Walesch asked if the applicant read the staff recommended conditions for approval and whether there were 
any issues with those conditions. 
 
Mr. Jewitt replied that he has read those recommended conditions. He asked if he would be grandfathered in 
to continue to have the four boat storage units. 
 
Tully replied that any property along the lake can have up to four BSUs, recognizing that it is easier for some 
properties. He stated that the watercraft at this property were all within compliance. 
 
Craig Weinstock, 20620 Linwood Road, encouraged the Board to deny this request. He stated that he is in 
100 percent alignment that the shoreline is shallow and would agree to extend the dock. He commented that 
he is a neighboring property owner, and the boat canopy is directly on the property line. He stated that he 
would prefer the boat canopy to be in the center as that would less restrict his view. He commented that the 
measurements on the dock are incorrect as there are sections of the dock that are five and six feet wide, not 
four feet wide. He stated that the current platform is also out of compliance. He stated that he had spoken with 
the neighbor on the other side, who did not want to further block access to his dock. He commented that he 
was unaware of the request until he saw the presentation tonight and did not believe the information shared 
with the residents was accurate. He stated that the existing dock configuration should be changed to be 
smaller. He asked the Board to deny the request and have the applicant resubmit a new request. He noted 
that he will be before the Board in the coming months to request a longer dock length as well.  
 
Zorn commented on the lot line as it exists, noting that the dock of the resident speaking is not centered in the 
way that he is requesting the applicant’s dock to be centered. She commented that the LMCD does not 
consider lake views.  
 
Newell referenced the covered boat house which has docks to the left and right. He commented that he has a 
boat house, and it is serviced by a dock on one side, which is adequate. He asked if the boat house, as 



Lake Minnetonka Conservation District 
Regular Board Meeting 
September 13, 2023                                                Page 4 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

proposed, could be serviced with just one dock section rather than two.  
 
Hoelscher stated that would be a question for staff. 
 
Mr. Weinstock commented that he would propose to eliminate that U towards the boat house and then 
reconfiguration of the platform. 
 
Tully commented that as part of the variance, they did request that the platform is brought into LMCD 
compliance, and the applicant did make that smaller. He stated that the Board could request that be made 
smaller, but the staff does not have an issue. 
 
Hoelscher stated that she would assume that in a variance request, the LMCD would require compliance with 
the Code related to dock width and platform size.  
 
Sandy Swenson, 4285 Cottonwood Lane, commented that she lives directly east of the applicant’s property 
and has had a wonderful experience with the applicants, noting that they are very accommodating to all of 
their neighbors. She requested that the Board approve the variances as requested. She commented on a 
short dock, which was incorrectly identified by the previous neighbor, noting that the dock is very short and is 
shared by the neighborhood and has plenty of room. She stated that she took her boat out yesterday and 
completely ruined her prop because of the low water conditions. She commented that it is great for swimming, 
but it is very shallow water for boats. She noted that there are many other docks in this area with converging 
lot lines and therefore are very tight. She stated that if the proposed dock were moved to the east, it would 
cause additional problems for all the dock owners on that side. She supported the proposal from the 
applicant. 
 
Klohs asked if the resident would support the variance if the platform was removed and the dock were moved 
over 20 feet. 
 
Ms. Swenson commented that she would not ask to remove the swim platform. 
 
Klohs asked if the resident would be okay if the platform then encroached on her property. 
 
Ms. Swenson commented that she would not want that because it would cause a problem for others as well. 
 
Klohs stated that the property owner to the west was requesting that the dock be centered to be fair.  
 
Ms. Swenson stated that she supports the application as proposed and noted that if it were moved to the east, 
it would impact a number of neighbors.  
 
Kenneth Kloock, 4305 Cottonwood Lane, stated that he lives across the street from this property. He 
understood the need to lengthen the dock but had concern with the dock location. He noted that moving the 
canopy would ruin their dock but recognized that view is not a matter for the LMCD to concern. He stated that 
in the past there were huge arguments about dock length, noting that he is a partner in the short dock. He 



Lake Minnetonka Conservation District 
Regular Board Meeting 
September 13, 2023                                                Page 5 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

was concerned with starting a large fight amongst the neighbors and believed this should be better discussed 
with the neighbors before this is approved. He commented that he loves the applicants and the applicants 
even let them use their dock to get on and off their boat. He commented that it was awful to live there when 
people did not get along and he did not want to see that issue repeated. He stated that this is no rush for this 
to be approved as it is the end of the season.  
 
Hoelscher agreed that it is best when neighbors can all get along and figure things out.  
 
Ms. Swenson commented that the occupants of Cottonwood Lane share the shared dock. She noted that only 
three of the Cottonwood Lane properties are on the lake and therefore there is always a fight between the 
neighbors that are not on the lake and there is a longstanding agreement between the owners that the shared 
dock can be no longer than 60 feet.  
 
Mr. Kloock stated that when there were big arguments, the applicant agreed to move his dock in to appease 
everyone and everything has been good since that time which is why he was a bit shocked that he wanted to 
move the dock back out.  
 
No additional comments were offered, and the public hearing was closed at 7:43 p.m. 
 
Jabbour asked if the water depth in the staff presentation was adjusted to 929.4.   
 
Tully confirmed that to be true. 
 
Jabbour asked and received confirmation that the LMCD is not taking into consideration that the water is low, 
but just the shallow depth of the water because of the sand bar. He stated that the LMCD allows a dock to 
reach a depth of four or five feet and asked a dock reaching that water depth would require a variance or an 
administrative review. 
 
Tully replied that a variance request would need to be considered by the Board. 
 
Jabbour commented that the Code allows a depth of four feet and the current dock is well below that. He 
stated that sometimes under low water a dock can extend a bit further. 
 
Tully confirmed that unless there was a variance, a dock can extend a bit further under low water declaration. 
 
Jabbour asked the status of this review compared to the 60-day review period. 
 
Tully replied that there would be time to delay action if desired. He confirmed that the applicant has attempted 
to work on this for the past two years with the LMCD staff. 
 
Jabbour asked if staff advised the applicant that he has the ability to request a lot line extension adjustment, 
meaning that he could take the area to the west side and move that line further towards the dock shown on 
the left. 



Lake Minnetonka Conservation District 
Regular Board Meeting 
September 13, 2023                                                Page 6 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Tully replied that staff did not advise or recommend that. 
 
Jabbour noted that has been done repeatedly.  
 
Tully confirmed that to be true. 
 
Jabbour commented that the lake is circular and the land around that is not, therefore the applicant could 
make that request. 
 
Anderson asked if there is a photograph of where the homes are. He referenced the comments about view 
and what is legal. He stated that everyone on the lake that has a canopy has an issue with the view. He noted 
that the home to the west has a problem with view because of where that home is situated. He stated that 
everyone has a canopy on Lake Minnetonka, and everyone is looking past that. He stated that the issue is not 
that the water is low right now, but the water depth is always low in this location.  
 
Tully noted that the existing dock reaches 3.7 feet of depth and adding additional length would reach four feet. 
 
Anderson commented that it is allowed in Code to reach four feet in depth. He stated that the issue of view is 
not relevant because the interpretation is different for every person. He stated that he is comfortable with the 
staff opinion and noted that the applicant stated that he agrees with the recommendation of staff as well. 
 
Walesch referenced the mention of a zero-lot line setback for the canopy and asked if the canopy is four feet 
from the dock section. 
 
Tully commented that from the western side there would be a zero-foot setback from the canopy.  
 
Walesch asked if the dock section would be reviewed to ensure that it meets the LMCD Code. 
 
Tully confirmed that to be true.  
 
Walesch asked if the applicant came in because of a complaint based on the previous configuration of the 
dock and noted that he has been working to find a solution that would work for all parties. 
 
Tully confirmed that this situation occurred because of a complaint and then began to work with the applicant 
to find a solution and this has been decided as the best path forward after working on this for over two years. 
 
Klohs commented that this situation is not unique on the lake as a number of shoreline sections have low 
water. He stated that granting this variance would effectively grant a variance for the whole neighborhood, as 
every neighbor could then request to extend out. He commented that while it seems justifiable, this will decide 
for the whole neighborhood, acknowledging that all parties would still need to come in and request the 
variance. 
 



Lake Minnetonka Conservation District 
Regular Board Meeting 
September 13, 2023                                                Page 7 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MOTION: Jabbour moved; Anderson seconded to direct LMCD legal counsel to prepare Findings of Fact 
and Order approving the variance application from Tony Jewett for the property located at 4290 Cottonwood 
Lane in for final approval at the September 27, 2023 LMCD Board meeting. 
 
Further discussion: Jabbour commented that he would like LMCD staff to inspect the dock after installation to 
ensure compliance. He noted the practical difficulties of converging lot lines and low water. 
 
VOTE: Ayes (12), Abstained (1), (Conrad). Motion carried. 

 
11. OTHER BUSINESS   

 
There was no other business. 

 
12. OLD BUSINESS 

 
A) Approval of Modified Waterski Observer Rule 9-1.01 
 
Hoelscher recapped the previous discussion and direction for legal counsel to prepare an amendment to the 
LMCD ordinance. She noted that following that, comments were received from Water Patrol against the 
changes to the observer rule. She stated that two proposed amendments were included in the packet for the 
Board to consider. She noted that the first draft ordinance would change the observer rule as previously 
discussed while the second draft ordinance would simply bring the language up to date and into compliance 
but would not change the observer rule portion of the ordinance. She noted that several people have 
requested to make comments and invited the public to address the Board. 
 
James Ronning, 740 Tonkawood Road, commented that he would like to address the letter to the LMCD from 
Sheriff Witt, noting that he supports her emphasis on the safety of Lake Minnetonka and believed that all lake 
users share that view. He stated that unfortunately the letter includes some inaccuracies related to the 
proposed change to the observer rule and failed to address that the density of traffic on the lake varies 
greatly depending on the time of day. He noted that the proposed changes to the rule would balance 
considerations of safety and reasonableness. He stated that the proposed amendment does not remove the 
spotter requirement as the letter implies, noting that the rule would be modified to remove the requirement 
when traffic does not warrant a requirement of a spotter. He stated that the letter commented that you could 
not compare Lake Minnetonka to any other lake in the state and he noted that while that is true during peak 
traffic times, in the peaceful early morning hours Lake Minnetonka is the same as any other lake in 
Minnesota. He noted that during those times a wide-angle mirror would still be required in lieu of an observer. 
He referenced the comments in the letter related to BUIs and acknowledged that while that is a concern, it 
seems very unlikely those occur during the times the observer rule is proposed to be lifted. He stated that the 
letter also references the high rental rates on the lake and emphasizes that many of those renting is 
inexperienced, noting that it is unlikely that those rentals are occurring during the proposed times for the 
change. He referenced the statement that endorsing this change would be the same as endorsing distracted 
driving, noting that is an unfair and inaccurate characterization. He stated that Minnesota law allows for a 
wide-angle mirror in lieu of an observer and that is considered to be reasonable and safe given its 



Lake Minnetonka Conservation District 
Regular Board Meeting 
September 13, 2023                                                Page 8 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

longstanding existence. He commented that early morning skiers and surfers are not only inconvenienced by 
the current rule, but it can also prohibit them from enjoying their respective recreational activities by the 
requirement to find a third person. He stated that White Bear Lake uses a similar time of day approach 
although with considerably larger time windows, given the lesser traffic, and to his knowledge that has been 
successful with that compromise between safety and reasonableness. He referenced the issue that was 
brought up in August when a Water Patrol boat struck and injured a skier that was being towed without an 
observer and noted that not all accidents are preventable. He commented that it is difficult to see how that 
would have been prevented by a rear facing observer in the ski boat, although perhaps could have been 
prevented by a forward-facing observer in the Water Patrol boat. He stated that this proposal is a rational 
change to the observer rule and believed that this would improve the opportunities for those that like to use 
the lake during quieter times. 
 
Mariam Goldfein, 200 Birch Bluff Road, commented that she is a concerned citizen and active user of the 
lake. She stated that when she read about the proposed change, she was very surprised that she had not 
heard about this issue before reading about it in a newsletter and also did not understand why this would be 
proposed on such a busy lake. She stated that she has lived on the lake for 20 years and there has been an 
increase in traffic, especially with wake surfing. She stated that she is a paddleboarder and restricts herself to 
paddling near the shore, wears bright clothes, and remains aware of her surroundings. She stated that she 
loves to paddle during the mornings when the water is quieter. She appreciated the citizen survey of Stubs 
Bay but noted that is not typical of the traffic levels in all areas. She commented that there are so many 
distractions for drivers on the lake and hoped that this would not become another. 
 
Hoelscher noted a letter of opposition received from the Lake Minnetonka Association.  
 
Eric Evenson, Lake Minnetonka Association, stated that LMA supports the option which would bring the 
language into compliance but keep the observer rule as it is. He recognized the comments of the first speaker 
and his desire to get on the water when it is most quiet. He recognized that it can be difficult to find a third 
person or want a third person. He stated that this rule would be applied to wake surfers and others towing. He 
stated that there are people out there using the lake early in the morning and there are no definitive times or 
areas that are quiet. He commented that surf boats are not getting smaller, and the lake is not getting less 
busy. He stated that this ordinance would allow a 12-year-old to operate a boat and tow a sibling that is 10 
years old without an observer. He was unsure that a 12-year-old would have the judgement and skills to 
watch out for what is going on in front of them while also looking behind in a mirror. He noted that his 17-
year-old neighbor was injured on the lake while operating a jet ski this summer. He noted that this change 
would be asking for trouble and encouraged the LMCD to simply update the ordinance to be compliant and 
up to date.  
 
Hoelscher noted an email received from a lakeshore owner stating their opposition to changing the observer 
rule. 
 
Kroll commented that he supports moving forward with the ordinance. He commented that he is a supporter 
of the LMA and Mr. Evenson but believed that several of those comments were not helpful in explaining the 
impact of the ordinance change. He commented that there are big wakes generated from a wake boat and if 



Lake Minnetonka Conservation District 
Regular Board Meeting 
September 13, 2023                                                Page 9 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

a wake boat were in a bay, people would not be skiing in that bay. He stated that he would also be concerned 
with a 12-year-old towing a skier but was not sure having another 12-year-old observer would provide benefit. 
He stated that he is supportive of law enforcement but in this case, he disagrees with the letter from Water 
Patrol. He noted that the letter from Sheriff Witt was not statistically convincing. He stated that Water Patrol, 
in the case of the accident, was a tough situation. He stated that the Water Patrol Deputy hit the skier’s rope 
because they were blinded by the rising run and therefore it was not relevant whether or not there was an 
observer, but it is relevant that Water Patrol chose to issue a ticket to the tower for not having an observer. 
He believed that Water Patrol is emotionally conflicted in this case, which may help explain why they are 
against updating this ordinance. He commented that people skiing without an observer, with the use of a 
wide-angle mirror, before 10 a.m. is reasonable. He referenced the issue of distracted driving, noting that 
people are expected to drive their cars on busy freeways with the use of a rearview mirror and therefore could 
cognitively manage looking in a wide-angle mirror on the lake. He supported moving ahead with the changes 
as previously discussed. 
 
Hoelscher noted that as drafted the ordinance amendment would remove the observer rule for all towing 
activities. 
 
Kroll stated that he would support that language as proposed but could also live with a narrowing of the 
language to only remove the observer rule during those time for waterskiing.  
 
Jabbour commented that in 1972 he received a ticket for skiing on Stubs Bay without an observer. He stated 
that sometime in the past, the previous Chair of the LMCD t-boned a boat because there was not an 
observer. He commented that he holds Water Patrol in high esteem and stated that if the boat in that incident 
had an observer, they would have noticed the lights of the Water Patrol boat and could have warned the 
driver. He noted that he has worked with the DNR on two accesses and there were over 100 organized 
fishing contests on the lake. He stated that boats have gotten larger, and he does not see the need to remove 
the observer rule. He referenced the Coast Guard summary of accidents and within the top ten reasons are 
improper look out and alcohol. He stated that although the Board had discussion and direction to amend the 
observer rule, higher powers are telling them that this would not be a good idea. 
 
Zorn commented that she can appreciate a desire to maximize all recreational activities on the lake, however 
the pure existence of the LMCD is unique and there is a different intensity of traffic on this lake. She stated 
that she also wants to support the perspective of Water Patrol and therefore leads towards denying the 
amendments to the observer rule but would support bringing the language within the ordinance up to date.  
 
Conrad commented that her father previously served on the White Bear Lake Conservation District and noted 
that during that time an observer was required. She asked when that rule changed. She stated that she grew 
up on White Bear Lake and grew up waterskiing. She stated that she knew everything about the lake and 
everyone that skied in the mornings followed the rules and knew the routes. She stated that she thought that 
was a big lake but when she came to Lake Minnetonka, she could not believe the activity on the small bays 
and the overall traffic on the lake. She commented that she sees this Board as acting as a connection 
between all the bays and every bay is so different, therefore, to change the law and blanket is for each bay 
would not seem appropriate.  



Lake Minnetonka Conservation District 
Regular Board Meeting 
September 13, 2023                                                Page 10 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Newell commented that they have been talking about quiet times and other times, noting that the LMA 
collected data on Maxwell Bay was interesting. He stated that the times they have assumed as quiet are not 
always quiet, as shown in that data. He stated that the lake is a busy place early in the morning and he 
believes that observers are needed. 
 
Anderson stated that he initially brought forward this concept because Mr. Ronning has been trying to bring 
this forward for over two years. He stated that he previously supported this change. He noted that the LMCD 
has determined that their focus is dock control and safety. He stated that if the Sheriff’s Office vehemently 
opposes this concept, which should be supported by the LMCD as the Water Patrol enforces safety for the 
lake. He stated that he would oppose changes to the observer rule but would support updating the language 
to come into compliance.  
 
Hoelscher stated that she agrees with Anderson noting that many members of the Board initially agreed with 
the proposal to change the observer rule but after receiving the comments from Water Patrol she has 
changed her position. She stated that this is the strongest response she has seen from Water Patrol in her 
ten years on the Board and cannot vote against the wishes of Water Patrol. 
 
MOTION: Anderson moved; Newell seconded to approve an ordinance amending Section 9-1.01, 

subdivision 1 to be consistent with State language to add wake surfing.  
 
 Further discussion: Conrad asked if it has ever been considered to have a waterski club. 
 
 Hoelscher stated that there are always opportunities to have special permits for certain activities at specific 

times and dates.  
 

VOTE: Ayes (12), Abstained (1), (Conrad). Motion carried. 
 
B) Approval of Employee Organization Chart and Flex Time 
 
Brimeyer commented that this has been talked about several months ago, moving employees from an hourly 
rate to a salary rate while also recognizing the positions for the work they each do. He stated that he also 
suggested a change from sick/vacation time to flex time.  
 
Hoelscher agreed that the Board discussed this at the last meeting and delayed action to allow additional 
time for review.  
 
Brimeyer stated that if adopted, this will provide new titles to employees to recognize what they have done. 
He stated that overtime would no longer be used, and employees would generate comp time, providing 
details on that process. 
 
MOTION: Stone moved; Anderson seconded to adopt the LMCD staff organizational chart and flex time 

policy. 



Lake Minnetonka Conservation District 
Regular Board Meeting 
September 13, 2023                                                Page 11 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
VOTE: Ayes (12), Abstained (1), (Conrad). Motion carried. 
 
C) Wayzata Panoway Project 
 
Brimeyer provided background information on the Multiple Dock License previously approved by the Board 
and the language tweaks that are requested by the City of Wayzata in order to support their bonding request 
from the legislature. He noted that the Multiple Dock License would still require renewal.  
 
Hoelscher recapped that the special density license had already been approved and this would add special 
language that is required for bonding.  
 
MOTION: Kroll moved; Baasen seconded to approve the amendment to the Multiple Dock License awarded 

to the City of Wayzata, allowing a boardwalk of ten feet versus eight feet in width. 
 
 Further discussion: Jabbour commented that he has a problem acting on something of which he is unsure. He 

commented that he is not familiar with these statutes and in the history of the LMCD, the LMCD has not been 
involved with bonding. He asked if there is any possible liability as a result of this.  

 
 Langel provided an overview of the different statutes which provide restrictions on how the funds are used 

and the lifespan of the constructed improvement. He commented that the risk is upon the city and not the 
LMCD.  

 
 Jabbour commented that is between the city and the state and is unsure why the LMCD is involved. He stated 

that an agreement dated October 2020 is also referenced and he does not recall seeing that agreement. He 
stated that perhaps Wayzata could indemnify the LMCD to ensure there is not a financial risk. He did not think 
this body was equipped to manage this.  

 
 Hoelscher stated that Langel stated that this would not put obligation on the LMCD and would put that 

obligation on the City of Wayzata. She asked if a statement could be inserted that would state that this does 
not put financial obligation on the LMCD.  

 
 Langel confirmed that could be done but noted that the reality is that the LMCD does not have financial 

obligations in this, as that is between the state and the city.  
 

Walesch noted that would simply be a statement under the findings of fact and would not be binding. He 
asked for details on the reference to the agreement from 2020.  
 
Jeffery Dahl, Wayzata City Manager, stated that they have been working with the state for the past two years 
and October 2020 is when the agreement was drafted. He stated that they are attempting to get 
reimbursement for the expenses as they are under construction and because this is a unique project that is 
not on dirt, the state wants assurance that nothing is going to take the dock away and that the LMCD is aware 
of that. 



Lake Minnetonka Conservation District 
Regular Board Meeting 
September 13, 2023                                                Page 12 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Walesch asked if Langel has read the MMB agreement. He stated that if that has not been read, perhaps it 
should be stated that, “The applicant represents that due to the use of general obligation bonds…: 
 
Langel confirmed that he would not oppose the use of that language as it would not impact the terms of the 
findings.  
 
Dahl commented that sounds rational, but he does worry about language changes as this has been an 
extensive process. He noted that if the Board supported that language, he would agree to it as well. 
 
Brimeyer stated that the only thing the LMCD is agreeing to is that if Wayzata were to make any changes, the 
LMCD would have the role or reporting that to the MMB. 
 
Langel stated that he has seen those types of agreements before, and they reflect the statutory process.  
 
Brandt referenced the extension of the length from 150 to 190 feet and asked if that would come before the 
Boad. 
 
Brimeyer stated that Wayzata has notified the LMCD that they will come in for a variance on length. He 
commented that the variance is a separate issue and that is a possibility that he has made the Board aware 
of.  
 
Anderson stated that he likes this but noted that it needs to be recorded to ensure staff remains aware of this 
required notice as staff does change over. He used the scenario that it is not recorded properly, and the new 
staff members do not provide the six-month notice and asked if that would make the LMCD liable or the 14 
member cities liable. He referenced the original motion that was made on May 10, 2023 noting that item four 
was supposed to be removed but it is still within the facts and findings as presented.  
 
Brimeyer noted that deals with the threshold for the EAW.  
 
Hoelscher stated that is not within the order but the findings of fact. She stated that was within the proposal as 
the length and the EAW was mentioned in the findings of fact, but the order did not include anything in respect 
to length.  
 
Walesch noted that perhaps that is a new number four, and the original number four was removed.  
 
Anderson believed that it remained within the new order.  
 
Hoelscher stated that is a fairly easy problem to solve as the minutes can be reviewed.  
 
Anderson noted that the boardwalk was approved but the city is supposed to come back with the dock 
structure request. 
 



Lake Minnetonka Conservation District 
Regular Board Meeting 
September 13, 2023                                                Page 13 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Walesch suggested that the language be changed to dock use area as it refers to an EAW.  
 
Hoelscher stated that staff can go back and listen to the recording of the meeting to ensure the correct 
language was removed. She commented that it seems there is a conflict with the motion made and the 
reflection within the document.  
 
Langel stated that in reviewing the minutes the reference to number four was within the introductory 
paragraph, not finding number four.  
 
Jabbour asked if the motion included the language suggested by Walesch as they had not read the 
document. 
 
Hoelscher stated that it has not been amended.  
 
Jabbour suggested amending paragraph 2A to add the statement “The applicant represents that due to the 
use of Minnesota general obligation bonds…: 
 
Kroll accepted that amendment. 
 
Baasen did not agree to the amendment and expressed concern that changes to the language could impact 
the path forward with MMB and the City of Wayzata. 
 
Anderson referenced the findings of fact and asked to see exhibit A which is referenced and asked if that is 
the boardwalk or the entire structure which included a dock going out to 200 feet. 
 
Tully stated that because the EAW originally identified a length of 180 to 200 feet, the order only allowed a 
length of 150 feet and required a as built to be provided.  
 
Anderson commented that it is odd that the panoway has been approved but the dock structure has not yet 
been approved. He asked why the dock structure is included in the facts and findings.  
 
Brimeyer commented that exhibit A is part of the original presentation.  
 
Anderson commented that today is the first time they have seen the facts and findings and order. 
 
Hoelscher stated that the facts and findings and order were approved on May 10th. She stated that the only 
thing being reviewed is the additional language related to the bond.  
 
Jabbour commented that he is unsure whether this is going to be a friendly amendment. He noted that they 
have not read the agreement and do not know what it says, therefore an additional statement should be 
added. 
 
Robert Williams, Wayzata City Attorney, commented that he has a marked-up version showing the language 



Lake Minnetonka Conservation District 
Regular Board Meeting 
September 13, 2023                                                Page 14 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

proposed to be added.  
 
Hoelscher stated that everyone is aware of that new language, and the question now is the issue that the 
Board has not reviewed the grant agreement referenced in 2A. She asked if the City Attorney would agree if 
that language were to be amended to add the statement mentioned by Walesch. 
 
City Attorney Williams replied that he cannot say yes or no because the LMCD acknowledgement language 
was chosen by the MMB. He commented that it is important to the MMB that the LMCD acknowledge the 
agreement and the rights of the MMB related to the boardwalk, which are spelled out in this additional 
language.  
 
Hoelscher stated that the concern of the Board is that this could open up the Board to financial obligation and 
asked if the City Attorney could assure that the LMCD would not have such liability. 
 
City Attorney Williams replied that he would defer to the statement of the LMCD legal counsel that there are 
no financial obligations connected to the MMB rights that could impose financial liability as the LMCD is not a 
party of that grant agreement.  
 
Langel commented that paragraph A is an acknowledgement, or a background fact, and the only obligation to 
the LMCD would be in paragraph E while the rest is background facts between the state and Wayzata. He 
stated that the issue of remembering would apply to the conditions placed upon every permit.  
 
Walesch commented that he does not believe that the members of the Board need to read all the agreements 
mentioned, but if those documents are referenced it would be implied that the LMCD has read and agreed to 
the terms of the agreement. He stated that if LMCD staff and legal counsel have not read the agreement, he 
would have concern with that. 
 
City Attorney Williams commented that it was not his suggestion to imply that acknowledgement would be 
consent or becoming a party to, simply acknowledging that there is a separate agreement out there. He 
clarified that the LMCD would not become a party to that agreement. He stated that if this improvement were 
to occur on land, this would not even need to occur and therefore the MMB needs to let the LMCD know that 
the agreement is out there.  
 
Kroll thanked Jabbour for flushing out this issue and stated that he feels comfortable that he is aware of the 
obligations of Wayzata to MMB. He called the question on his original motion.  
 
Anderson asked for details on the change from 20 years to 25 years. 
 
City Attorney Williams replied that 20 years would be the expected life expectancy and 25 years would be 125 
percent of that term. 

 
VOTE: Ayes (9), Opposed (3) (Jabbour, Anderson, and Brandt), Abstained (1), (Conrad). Motion carried. 
 



Lake Minnetonka Conservation District 
Regular Board Meeting 
September 13, 2023                                                Page 15 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

13. NEW BUSINESS 
 
There was no new business. 

 
14. TREASURER REPORT 
 

A) August Balance Sheet 
B) August General & STL Income and Expense Reports 
 
Anderson provided a brief update. He encouraged Newell and Kirkwood to assist with the solicitation letter for 
Save the Lake. 

 
15. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR UPDATE 

 
A) Update on Ongoing Complaints 

i. Schussler 
ii. Cripe 

 
Brimeyer stated that contact has been made with the dock owner for the first case and the property owner 
wants to work something out. He noted that staff members met with the property owner to review some 
issues that could resolve the issue. He stated that they are having a tough time getting the second property 
owner to collaborate with staff or to set a court date.  
 
B) Prosecution Attorney Update 
 
Brimeyer stated that he provided an update on the prosecuting attorney who is changing law firms. He 
provided a brief overview of the written report which highlighted recent cases that the prosecuting attorney is 
working on. 
 
C) Professor Newman Status 
 
Brimeyer provided an update on the sub-basin request from Professor Newman, noting that the DNR does 
not support the change.  
 
D) Watercraft for Hire Workgroup Update 
 
Brimeyer stated that a note from the Chair was included in the packet updating the group on progress. 
 
E) JJ Hill and Apple Days Update 
 
Brimeyer commented that LMCD staff attended JJ Hill Days and noted that Kroll and former Director Thomas 
would be attending Apple Days.  
 



Lake Minnetonka Conservation District 
Regular Board Meeting 
September 13, 2023 Page 16 

Hoelscher acknowledged the low water levels, noting that there was a similar issue last year and the Board 
deferred declaring low water because of the late time in the season and reached consensus that is the same 
approach the Board would like to take this year.  

Anderson commented that people do not look at all the papers printed within the folders for the meetings and 
would prefer to save trees. 

Hoelscher stated that she disagrees as she does look at that material. She noted that the only items included 
in that folder are the late items that have not been reviewed in the digital packet information. 

Anderson provided additional comments on flowering rush. 

16. ADJOURNMENT

MOTION: Walesch moved; Newell seconded to adjourn the meeting at 9:39 p.m.

VOTE: Motion carried unanimously.

___________________________________ ___________________________________ 
Ann Hoelscher, Chair  Jake Walesch, Vice Chair 



ITEM 7A







1 

Type:  Adjusted Dock Use Area, 

Length, and Side Setback 

Variance 

Date:  September 27, 2023 

Applicant:  Tony Jewett  

PID:  24-117-23-32-0082

Address: 4290 Cottonwood Lane 

Deephaven, MN, 55331 

LAKE MINNETONKA CONSERVATION DISTRICT 

HENNEPIN COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

IN RE: 

Application of Tony Jewett  for a Adjusted 

Dock Use Area, Dock Length and Side Site 

Back  Variance for the property located at 4290 

Cottonwood lane in the City of Deephaven 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

AND ORDER 

The Lake Minnetonka Conservation District (“LMCD”) received an application from Tony 

Jewett (“Applicant”) for a variance from the 63-foot limit on dock use area, and 0-foot setback 

on both the eastern and western end of the dock structure to allow the installation of a 114 foot 

dock from the property located at 4290 Cottonwood Lane, Deephaven, Minnesota and legally 

described in the attached Exhibit A (“Subject Property”).  The LMCD Board of Directors 

(“Board”) held a public hearing, after due notice having been provided, on the requested 

variances on September 27, 2023.  Based on the proceedings and the record of this matter, the 

Board hereby makes the following Findings of Fact and Order: 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. The Subject Property is located in the City of Deephaven and is on South Lower Lake, which

is part of Lake Minnetonka (“Lake”). The Subject Property has had a dock in a location that

does not meet the standard LMCD Code Requirements.

2. The Applicant desires to install a dock with sufficient length to reach navigable water.  The

Applicant is proposing a dock with a total length of approximately 114 feet, which reaches a

water depth of approximately four feet, as shown on the site plan attached hereto as Exhibit

B (“Site Plan”).  The length of the current dock from shore is approximately 90 feet and does

not meet standard LMCD Code.

3. The Subject Property has approximately 63 feet of 929.4 feet OHW shoreline.

4. The Applicant proposes to have one boat storage unit (“BSU”) enclosed within a dock

ITEM 7B



2 

structure and 3 additional BSUs behind the enclosed slip for a personal watercraft for a total 

of 4 BSUs these additional BSU’s would be required to meet standard LMCD Code 

requirements.   

5. Additional information regarding this matter is provided in the LMCD staff report related to

this application dated September 07, 2023, and the presentation made thereon at the meeting

(collectively, the “Staff Reports”).  The Staff Reports are incorporated herein by reference,

except that the approvals and conditions contained in this document shall be controlling to

the extent there are any inconsistencies.

6. The Applicant proposes a variance from the 63-foot length limit on the dock use area

established in Section 2-3.03, Subd. 2(a) of the Code to allow a dock with a length of 114

feet in order to reach water with a depth of at least four feet to allow the reasonable

navigation and storage of watercraft.

7. Section 6-5.01, Subd. 3 of the Code expressly provides for the adjustment of the length

limitations where feasible “to allow the construction and maintenance of a dock in the Lake

to a water depth of five feet, measured from 929.4 feet NGVD, at the outer end of such dock

to provide adequate water depth for navigation and to protect the environmental quality or

natural habitat of the water adjacent to the dock.”

8. The Applicant is not requesting a dock with a length sufficient to reach five feet as

recognized by the Code, and is instead only requesting to reach a water depth of

approximately four feet.

9. Section 6-5.01, Subd. 6 of the Code allows the granting of a variance if the Board determines

practical difficulties exists and that granting the variance with whatever conditions it deems

are necessary does not adversely affect the purposes of the Code, the public health, safety,

and welfare, and reasonable access to or use of the Lake by the public or riparian owners.

10. The term “practical difficulties” is defined in Code, Section 1-3.01, Subd. 76 as meaning

“one or more unique conditions of a property that prevent the property owner from using the

Lake in a reasonable manner permitted by the Code and that serve as a basis for the property

owner to request a variance from the strict application of the provisions of the Code. Practical

difficulties only exist with respect to a particular property if the conditions preventing the

proposed reasonable use of the property are unique to the property, were not created by the

property owner, and are not based solely on economic considerations.”

11. The proposed use of the Lake to install a dock with sufficient length to reach navigable water

is reasonable given the depth of the water and the large sand bar of the Subject Property.

These conditions are unique that were not created by the Applicant.  The variance request is

not based solely on economic considerations in that the variance is needed to reach water of

sufficient depth to safely operate a watercraft.  Under these unique set of circumstances, the

Board determines practical difficulties exist and that it is appropriate to grant the requested

length variance to enable the reasonable use of the Lake by the riparian owner.



3 

12. Granting the requested variances will not adversely affect the purposes of the Code as the

installation and use of a dock and the canopy furthers the purposes of the Code by promoting

reasonable access to the Lake.  The requested variance is also not contrary to the public

health, safety, or welfare in that the dock does not pose a safety or navigation problem on the

Lake.  The dock will not extend beyond adjacent emergent vegetation and so boats traveling

at speed tend to avoid the area in which the dock will be located.  Also, this dock is located

entirely within the extended sidelines and does not interfere with the navigation of watercraft

to or from the neighboring docks.

13. Affected agencies were notified of the application.  The City of Deephaven and the

Minnesota Department of Natural Resources had no comment on the application.  The

Minnehaha Creek Watershed District had no formal comment as well.  The LMCD does not

enforce the provisions of such declarations.  The LMCD did receive public comments at the

hearing in opposition of the installation of the dock and these concerns were taken into

account.

14. The Applicant’s proposed installation of a dock to access a navigable portion of the Lake is a

reasonable use of the Subject Property.  The location of the dock is entirely within the

extended side site lines of the Subject Property, satisfies applicable side site line setbacks, the

dock structure does not cross in front of a neighboring property, and the location of the dock

is reasonable given the topography of the Subject Property and the water depths.

15. Practical difficulties exist in this case that support the Board exercising its authority under

Section 6-5.01 of the Code to grant a dock length variance for the Subject Property.

ORDER 

ON THE BASIS OF THE FOREGOING AND THE RECORD OF THIS MATTER, IT 

IS ORDERED by the Board as follows: 

1. Dock Length Variance.  A fifty one (51) foot dock length and authorized dock use area

variance is hereby approved for the Subject Property to allow the installation of a dock with a

total length of up to one hundred and fourteen (114) feet, which extends one hundred and

fourteen (114) feet into the Lake from elevation 929.4 feet NGVD, as shown on the Site Plan

attached hereto as Exhibit B, subject to compliance with all of the conditions set out in this

Order.

2. Conditions.  The variances granted in this Order are subject to compliance with all of the

following conditions:

a. Ensure the dock structure located at the Site is in strict compliance with the Approved

Site plan.

b. Ensure watercraft (1) are contained within the BSU located at the site.

c. For the Western and Eastern side setbacks, maintain a minimum 0  foot-setback from



4 

shore as it extends into the lake as indicated on the site plan. 

d. The length of the dock structure and storage must be no longer than 114 feet from the

929.4 feet OHWL as water levels should be sufficient during normal OHW.

Extension of the dock structure is not permitted during low water levels.

e. Allow up to four (4) personal BSUs for the Site, additional BSUs located at the site

that would NOT bet contained in the designated BSU as depicted on the site must

meet standard LMCD Setback.

f. Failure of the Applicant to comply with any with any relevant regulations of all

LMCD, Federal, State, County, and Municipal rules and regulations may result in

revocation of these approvals.

g. Watercraft stored in the BSU may not extend beyond the length of the slip.

Prohibited extensions include any portion of the watercraft, including all attached

equipment, that extend beyond the ends of the boat slip.

h. Watercraft, structures, and equipment may not extend beyond the maximum length of

the dock and shall be stored in such a way as to comply with the approved setbacks.

i. Provide an updated site plan with final configuration and measurements as approved

by the Board, this includes all watercraft for the site and their respective BSU.

j. Any structures placed as part of this variance shall be maintained in good condition

and shall promptly be removed, together with any watercraft stored on them, if this

variance is ever revoked by action of the Board or if it is rendered null and void.

k. This variance shall be rendered null and void in event the Subject Property is

subdivided.  If the Subject Property is combined with another property, the Applicant

shall request a review of the variance by the LMCD Executive Director to determine

if a new or amended variance is required.  If the Executive Director determines that a

new or amended variance is required, the applicant shall submit an application for the

variance to the LMCD within forty-five (45) days of the determination or bring the

Subject Property into conformance with the Code without reliance on this variance

within the same period.

l. This variance grants no vested rights to the use of the Lake. Use of the Lake shall at

all times remain subject to regulation by the LMCD to assure the public of reasonable

and equitable access to the Lake.

m. Utilization of the Lake pursuant to this variance constitutes, and shall be deemed,

acceptance of, and agreement to, the terms and conditions of this variance without

exception, qualification, or reservation.



 

5 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS of the Lake Minnetonka Conservation 

District this 27th  day of September 2023. 

 

 

 

_____________________________ 

       Ann Hoelscher, Chair 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Mike Kirkwood, Secretary



EXHIBIT A 

Legal Description of Subject Property 

Lots 13 Thru 18 Incl And The Nwly 39 Ft Of Lot 12 All In Ideville Also That Part Of Vacated 

Lake Street Desc As Fol Com At Most Ely Cor Of 



7 

EXHIBIT B 

Site Plan 

[attached hereto] 





www.lmcd.org • lmcd@lmcd.org

To preserve and enhance the “Lake Minnetonka experience” 

ITEM 7C 

DATE: September 27, 2023 (Prepared September 20, 2023) 

TO: LMCD Board of Directors 

FROM: Jim Brimeyer, Interim Executive Director 

SUBJECT: Wayzata Panoway Project 

ACTION  

  Board approval of the revised Findings and  Order for the Wayzata Panoway Project 

BACKGROUND  

There has been some confusion about what was approved and what did not get approval. 

Attached is a revised Findings and Order which incorporates the motion approved at the 

September 13th meeting. Some changes include:
• labeling the exhibits to correspond to the narrative in the document;

• clarifying that the EAW paragraph is for historic information, not approval of any dock

extension;

• making historical reference to the 1982 court ruling regarding the riparian rights of the city

vs the railroad;

• a new paragraph 2(f) referring to the current 150’ rule for the dock structures;

• and, a revised paragraph 2(p) referring to the requirement for a new De-icing license.

The item is on the consent agenda and may be removed for further discussion by the board.

STRATEGIC PRIORITIES____________________________________
 Docks, 
 Applications, X   Lake Use,      Lake  Operational 
 Licenses,   Safety      Protection  Effectiveness Other 
 Surface Water 
 Management 

ATTACHMENT 

XX 

http://www.lmcd.org/
mailto:lmcd@lmcd.org


525584v2 TJG LK110-4 

Type:  Municipal Multiple Dock License/ 
Special Density/ Length Variance 

Date: May 10, 2023 
PID: 06-117-22-31-0001 

Address:  402 Lake Street East, 
Wayzata, MN 55391 

LAKE MINNETONKA CONSERVATION DISTRICT 

HENNEPIN COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

IN RE: 

Application of City of Wayzata for a New 
Municipal Multiple Dock License located at 

402 Lake Street East in the City of Wayzata.

The Lake Minnetonka Conservation District (“LMCD”) received an application from Mike 
Kelly, on behalf of the City of Wayzata, (“Applicant”) for a New Municipal Multiple Dock 

License for the City of Wayzata property located at 402 Lake Street East, Wayzata, MN 55391 
(“Subject Property”). The Subject Property has two separate locations consisting of 3460 feet of 
OWHL Shoreline on Wayzata Bay.  The Applicant is seeking approval for four modifications to 

the existing multiple dock license issued for the Subject Property: (1) addition of dock structure 
(“Boardwalk”) running the length of the shoreline between Manitoba Ave. S. and Broadway 

Ave. S.; (2) allow for a 10-foot width variance for the entirety of the boardwalk to meet ADA 
regulations;  and (3) allow for a reconfiguration and additional 6 Transient BSUs to the current 
dock structure resulting in a new Special Density of 1:22 from 1:23. The LMCD Board of 

Directors (“Board”) has in the past issued various approvals for the Subject Property as part of a 
multiple dock license. Due to proposed increase in dock structure, increased BSUs, and increased 

Dock Use Area (“DUA”), the Applicant is required to obtain a new multiple dock license.  The 
Board provided the Applicant and the general public an opportunity to be heard at the public 
hearing held on April 26, 2023, and now, based on its proceedings and the record of this matter, 

hereby makes the following Findings of Fact and Order:  

FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. The Applicant operates what has previously been designated a Municipal Multiple Dock and

has an existing multiple dock license for the Subject Property. The existing multiple dock
license also is subject to Variance Order dated 04.08.98 (Exhibit C) and a Special Density

License dated 04.22.15 (Exhibit B).

2. The Applicant submitted a site plan which is attached hereto as Exhibit A and is incorporated

herein (“Site Plan”).  The Site Plan identifies the proposed Boardwalk structure, the existing
dock reconfiguration, and the proposed BSUs to be classified as transient use. The Applicant

is proposing an increase in dock structure from 8,593 sq. feet to 22,356 sq. feet.

DRAFT

ITEM 7C Attachment



402 Lake Street East, Municipal Multiple Dock License 
Findings of Fact and Order 

May 10, 2023 
 

2 
 

3. Under Section 4-1.07, of the LMCD Code, the proposed reconfiguration, addition of 
structure, and increased BSUs resulting in a change of special density to the municipal 

multiple dock requires the Applicant to seek a new multiple dock license.  

 

4. The Applicant’s proposal required an EAW. An EAW is mandatory when marina size 
reaches or surpasses 20,000 sq. feet. The proposal at the site would increase the size of the 

dock structure to 22,356. The applicant had a thorough EAW completed in 2018. Nothing 
has changed on the project since the finalization and approval of the EAW.  

 

5. The City of Wayzata owns the property along the shore, over which the BNSF Railway has 
an easement. The City has two agreements with BNSF Railway regarding the proposed 

project. The two agreements between the parties include the use of two railroad right of way 
crossings that allow access to the proposed dock structure - one along Manitoba, the other at 

Broadway. 

 

6. No additional agreements are required due to the City of Wayzata producing proof to be the 

administrator and owner of the Site, as affirmed by a decision of the Minnesota Supreme 
Court in 1892. Additionally, a Site Plan dated 1966 is attached, depicting ownership by the 

City of Wayzata (“Exhibit D”) 

 

7. The Board finds that the review criteria of LMCD Code Sections 2.03 and 2.05 are met and 
that the amenities, as hereinafter set forth, are sufficient to justify issuance of an amended 
special density license for the proposed facility.  

 

(a) PUBLIC ACCESS (10) 

 
i. Fishing dock (fishing is permitted at the Broadway Dock during restricted  

hours (10) 

ii. Guarded swimming beach (10) 
 

(b) ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (5) 
i. Stormwater pond at Wayzata Beach (5) 

ii. Shoreline protection – rip rap along shoreline between Depot and Broadway 

(5) 
iii. Eurasian water milfoil off-load site at the end of Arlington Lane (5) 

 
(c) PUBLIC SERVICE (3) 

i. Make ready docks in the Marina and at the DNR launch site adjacent to the 

Yacht club (3) 
ii. Ramp use for emergencies (3) 

iii. Winter access at Wayzata Beach (3) 
iv. Slip use for emergency (3) 
v. Observation deck at Depot (3) 

DRAFT



402 Lake Street East, Municipal Multiple Dock License 
Findings of Fact and Order 

May 10, 2023 

3 

vi. Picnic area at Wayzata Beach (3)
vii. Public seating areas on docks at Broadway and the Depot (3)

viii. Public toilets at the Bath house at the Marina and portable toilet at the Depot
(3)

8. The Board finds that a variance for a dock width of 10’ is appropriate.  Pursuant to Section
6-5.01, subds. 1 and 6, a variance is permitted where necessary to provide access to persons 

with disabilities.  The Applicant seeks a dock width of 10’ to meet ADA standards.  The 
variance will not adversely affect the purposes of the LMCD Code, the public health, safety, 

and welfare, or access to the Lake by the public. 

ORDER 

ON THE BASIS OF THE FOREGOING AND THE RECORD OF THIS MATTER, IT 

IS HEREBY ORDERED BY THE BOARD AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Approvals. The following approvals requested by the Applicant are hereby approved and

issued for the Subject Property for the 2023 boating season and beyond, subject to the
conditions identified herein:

(a) Municipal Multiple Dock License A multiple dock license for 153 BSUs, 100 of  which 
will be allowed for  overnight storage of restricted watercraft and the remaining 53 

BSUs, including the additional 6 BSUs, for transient use of restricted watercraft at 
BSUs as shown on the Site Plan (s) (Exhibit A); and 

(b) New Special Density License A new special density license will allow for the 
incorporation of 6 additional transient BSUs for the use of the public. This special 

density license will incorporate the current special density license and allow for the 
change in boat density from 1:23 to 1:22; and 

(c) New Dock Width Variance.  A new variance allowing the boardwalk to be 10 feet wide 

in order to satisfy ADA regulations; and 

(d) Maintain Current Setback Variance The current Variance for the site is show as "Setback 
Variance"on the current Approved Site Plans   (Exhibit C ). 

2. Conditions. The approvals granted in this order are subject to, and condition upon, compliance

with the following:

DRAFT



402 Lake Street East, Municipal Multiple Dock License 
Findings of Fact and Order 

May 10, 2023 
 

4 
 

 
(a) LMCD and Applicant acknowledge that due to the use of State of Minnesota General 

Obligation Bonds to fund construction of the Boardwalk, the Commissioner of 
Minnesota Management and Budget (“MMB”) has certain rights in the Applicant’s 

Boardwalk as set forth in that certain General Obligation Bond Proceeds Grant 
Agreement/ Construction Grant for the Wayzata Lake Effect Boardwalk Project 
between Applicant and the Department of Employment and Economic Development, 

dated October 20, 2020 (the “Grant Agreement”). 
 

(b) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Order, the Boardwalk and this Order 
as it pertains to the Boardwalk shall remain subject to Minn Stat #16A.695, the Grant 
Agreement, and the Fourth amending Order of Commissioner of Finance Relating to 

Use and Sale of State Bond Financed Property dated July 30, 2012 for 125% of the 
useful life of the Boardwalk. 

 

(c) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Order, the parties fully intend for the 

Applicant to continue to use, operate, and the maintain the Boardwalk for not less than 
twenty-five (25) years. 

 

(d) Failure of the Applicant to comply with any with any relevant regulations of all LMCD, 
Federal, State, County, and Municipal rules and regulations may result in revocation of 

these approvals. 
 

(e) Notwithstanding condition 2(d) of these approvals immediately above, LMCD agrees 
to provide at least six (6) months written notice to the Commissioner of MMB, consult 
with MMB, and make a good faith effort to obtain the Commissioner of MMB’s 

consent before modifying, restating, amending, changing in any way, prematurely 
terminating, or cancelling this Order. Before LMCD terminates or cancels this Order 

due to Applicant’s failure to comply with condition 2(d), LMCD will give written 
notice of such failure to Applicant and will first demand specific performance by 
Applicant (for the avoidance of doubt, this provision does not require LMCD to obtain 

a court order for specific performance to establish compliance with the demand for 
specific performance required hereunder). 

 

(f) The proposed Boardwalk will be in strict compliance with the proposed site plan(s) 
(Exhibit A) and the Applicant will provide LMCD Staff with a updated Site plan which 

contains the dock structure as it extends into the lake at 150 feet. 
 

(g) The multiple dock license issued herein is unique to the Applicant. Upon transfer of 

ownership of the Subject Property to another individual or entity, such individual or 
entity will be required to apply for a new license and any other approvals from the 

Board that may be required. 
 
(h) Watercrafts and other structures may not extend beyond the 150-foot contour as it 

extends from the 929.4 OHWL. 

DRAFT



402 Lake Street East, Municipal Multiple Dock License 
Findings of Fact and Order 

May 10, 2023 
 

5 
 

 

(i) Adequate lighting and/or reflectorized material be provided at the end of the dock 

structure as approved by LMCD staff. 

 

(j) Submit an as-built Site plan which will be inspected by LMCD Staff upon 

completion.  

(k) No temporary low water variances shall be granted during the period when the Lake 

level falls below elevation 928.0 National Geodetic Vertical Datum.  
 

(l) Maintain a maximum of 10 feet in width along the Boardwalk only, per ADA 
regulations. 

 

(m) No Watercrafts or BSUs will be allowed along the entirety of the Boardwalk, This was 
granted under the guise that it will be for the public only. 

 

(n) Allow for the change in Special density from 1:23 to 1:22, if all requirements 

continue to be met. (See Exhibit B). 

(o) Allow for the continuation of Setback Variance dated 04.08.98 (See Exhibit C). 
 

(p) This site is eligible for a De-Icing License. If the applicant proposes an expansion of 

de-icing in the future, a new De-icing License must be obtained.  

 

(q) Other general license requirements apply. 

 

 

 
3. Authorizations. The LMCD staff is hereby authorized and directed to issue the approved 

multiple dock license for the Subject Property and to take such other actions as may be 
needed to ensure compliance with this Order and the requirements of the Code. 

 

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS of the Lake Minnetonka Conservation 
District this 10th day of May, 2023 

 
 
 

       _________________________________ 
       Ann Hoelscher, Chair 

ATTEST:  
 
 

_______________________________ 
Mike Kirkwood, Secretary  

DRAFT



IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIFSDFIIIIII

DRAFT



R

R

R

T

T

T

T

R T

R

T

90
6

908

910

912
914

91
6

918

920

922

924

926

928
930932934

936

892

894

896

898
900 902 904

906
908

910
912

914

920

922

924

926

928

930

934932

M
IN

NE
TO

NK
A 

AV
E.

 S
.

W
AL

KE
R 

AV
E.

 S
.

BR
OA

DW
AY

 A
VE

. S
.

916

918

THE DEPOT

RAILROAD

FIGURE 2: PHASE 2A BOARDWALK

NORTH

O.H.W.L
929.4

100-YR FLOODPLAIN ELEVATION
931.5

PROPOSED BOARDWALK

PROPOSED BOARDWALK PIERS,
(2) PILES AT EACH LOCATION, FOR
(37) LOCATIONS

Scale: 1" = 100'

0 50 100 200

LAKE MINNETONKA
"AQUATIC RESOURCE A"

Volume of Water Displacement:
Number of Piers = 37
Number of 16" Steel/Concrete Piles = 74
X-Section area of each Pile = 1.4 sq ft
Average Water Depth = 6.78 ft
Volume of Water Displacement (each pile) = 9.5 cu ft
Total Volume of Water Displacement = 702.4 cu ft (74 x 9.5)

Lake Bottom Disturbance:
74 Steel/ Concrete Piles x 1.4 sq ft = 104 sq ft (permanent)
(74 Piles x 64 sq ft (clearing rocks) = 4736 sq ft) - 104 sq ft (footprint) = 4632 sq ft
(temporary)

Floodplain Storage Displacement (Refer to Detail 2):
1. Precast Concrete 'T's = 1419 cu ft (0.6' area x 1182.5' boardwalk length x 2 'T's)
2. Steel Beam = 27.9 cu ft (0.14' area x 5.4' beam length x 37 piers)
3. Piles = 62.2 cu ft (1.4' area x 0.6' water depth x 74 piles)

Total Volume Floodplain Storage Displacement = 1509.1 cu ft

(SEE 3 / S-04)

5 11
16

"
4"

1'-
6"

PRECAST DOUBLE 'T'

PAIR OF BATTERED
STEEL PILES,

16" DIA,
CONCRETE FILLED

CONE SHAPED ICE SHIELD
WITH 45 DEGREE ANGLE

SECTION A-A

SECTION A-A

10'-0"

TYPICAL PIER DETAIL
1

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

100-YR FLOODPLAIN
ELEVATION 931.5

O.H.W.L 929.4

WINTER ICE LEVEL
928.6

ALUMINUM REMOVABLE
STEP DOWNS STRUCTURES

ALUMINUM REMOVABLE STEP DOWNS STRUCTURES

LAKE STREET

FLOATING SILT CURTAIN
EXACT PLACEMENT TO BE DETERMINED

TYPICAL PIER WATER DISPLACEMENT AREAS
2

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

STEEL
BEAM
SECTION

1 12
33

100-YR FLOODPLAIN
ELEVATION 931.5

O.H.W.L 929.4

WINTER
ICE LEVEL

928.6

EXHIBIT A

DRAFT



DRAFT



EXHIBIT B

DRAFT



EXHIBIT B

DRAFT



DRAFT



EXHIBIT C 

DRAFT



EXHIBIT C 

DRAFT



EXHIBIT C 

DRAFT



EXHIBIT C 
(Setback Variance)

DRAFT



EXHIBIT D 

1966 Depicting Ownership by City of Wayzata 

(Attached Hereto) 

DRAFT



EXHIBIT D

DRAFT

mike
Rectangle



www.lmcd.org • lmcd@lmcd.org

To preserve and enhance the “Lake Minnetonka experience” 

DATE: Sept 27, 2023 (Prepared September 20, 2023) 

TO: LMCD Board of Directors 

FROM: Thomas Tully, Manager of Code Enforcement 

CC: Jim Brimeyer, Interim Executive Director 

SUBJECT: Variance for Adjusted Site Setback and Length, 16508 Grays Bay Blvd, 

Minnetonka, MN 55391, Grays Bay 

ACTION_____________________________________________________________________ 

Board consideration of a variance submitted by the Applicant for an adjusted side setback and 

length allowance for 16508 Grays Bay Blvd on Grays Bay in the City of Minnetonka (PID 08-

117-22-43-0032) and receive public input during the public hearing.

The following motions are offered depending on whether the Board wishes to approve or deny 

the request: 

Approval 

I make a motion to direct LMCD legal counsel to prepare Findings of Fact and Order 

approving the variance application from Meadowbrook Boat Club for the property 

located at 16508 Grays Bay Blvd in Minnetonka for final approval at the October 11, 

2023, LMCD Board meeting <subject to the following conditions>…  

Denial 

I make a motion to direct LMCD legal counsel to prepare Findings of Fact and Order 

denying the variance application from Meadowbrook Boat Club for the property located 

at 16508 Grays Bay Blvd in Minnetonka for a final vote at the October 11, 2023, LMCD 

Board meeting based on…  

APPLICATION SUMMARY____________________________________________________ 

The applicant, Meadowbrook Boat Club (“Applicant”) has submitted a variance application to 

reaffirm the dock length and adjust the side setback for 16508 Grays Bay Blvd in Minnetonka: 

(“Site”).  The Applicant’s parcel has approximately 13 feet of 929.4 feet OHW shoreline. The 

variance application was submitted in an effort to resolve ongoing issues of conflicting dock use 

areas located at the site. 

Site Background 

The LMCD has historically licensed this property as a multiple dock license in accordance with a 

1976 Approved site plan, subject to a variance issued  1972 which was indefinitely extended in 

1975 after letters of support from the neighboring properties were submitted. The approved site 

ITEM 10A



Application for Variance at, 16508 Grays Bay Blvd in Minnetonka 

LMCD Board Meeting September 27, 2023 

Page 2 

2 

plan allows for a 100-foot dock structure, 4 BSUs, and a 0-foot setback on the northern side. No 

BSU dimensions were specified on the Approved site plan or specified on the 1972 Findings of 

Fact. However, the current LMCD MDL license for the site allows for 4 BSUs up to 12 feet wide 

by 32 feet in length. This change was made in 1989 on a renewal application and references a 

letter dated 02/27/90. No letter confirming this reason of this change has been found by Staff. 

On September 26, 2022 LMCD Staff sent an enforcement letter notifying the Meadowbrook 

Boat club that the dock structure and watercrafts stored on the site were out of LMCD 

compliance. LMCD Staff have since worked with both the Applicant and neighboring properties 

towards a long term solution to this ongoing issue. 

The Applicant is proposing to maintain the length of dock structure and a zero-foot setback on 

the northern side as currently approved for the site. The Applicant proposes to install a dock 

structure that would extend out into the lake approximately 100 feet. The dock structure would 

have a zero-foot setback on the northeastern side and a 1-foot setback on the south side. The 

existing structure does not currently meet setbacks or dock length requirements per LMCD Code. 

This dock structure was previously allowed to extend into the lake 80 feet due to a past variance 

issued in 1972, and then was allowed an additional 1ength variance to extend into the lake up to 

100 feet in 1975. This variance is being brought back before the LMCD Board due to ongoing 

conflicts between the Applicant and the Neighboring properties.  

The Applicant proposes to install a dock structure with four (4) Boat Storage Unit (BSU) 8.5 feet 

wide by 22 feet in length. The walkways of the dock structure are currently 3.5 feet wide, .5 feet 

wider than what is currently approved for the site. The length of the dock structure at the site is 

currently 100 feet, as approved in 1975. The applicant is also proposing to be allowed to 

maintain the current dock structure (3.5 x 100). 

The current dock structure for the site is roughly 100 feet. LMCD Code allows properties with 

less than 40 feet of shoreline to extend their dock structure out a distance into the lake of 60 feet 

or to 4 feet of water depth, whichever is reached first. Meaning that at the current placement the 

applicants dock does not meet LMCD code.  

Standard LMCD Code for residential properties with under 50 feet of shoreline require a 5-foot 

setback for dock structure extending into the lake 0 to 60 feet. However, Multiple Docks located 

next to residential properties are required to double this resulting in a 10 foot setback 

requirement. The current dock structure and watercrafts approved for the site do not meet 

Standard LMCD setbacks. LMCD staff found no evidence that a setback requirement was 

imposed for the southern side site line, only the northern 0-foot setback. Navigation as well as 

safety should be taken into account when reviewing the application. 

Lastly, it should be noted that the Dock Use Area for the Site starts at approximately 13 feet 

wide at the 929.4 OHWL and reduces down to approximately 12 feet wide at the end of the 

Approved Site envelope (100 feet). Meaning a standard setback for the site on the southern side 

would not be uniform and should be considered by the Board. With a 3 foot dock structure as 

previously approved, and a 8.5 maximum width BSU, Setbacks for the site would be 1.5 feet to 

.5 feet as the structure extends into the lake. With the Current dock structure, setbacks would be 

approximately 1 foot to 0 foot respectively.    



Application for Variance at, 16508 Grays Bay Blvd in Minnetonka 

LMCD Board Meeting September 27, 2023 

Page 3 

3 

CONSIDERATIONS OF VARIANCE_____________________________________________ 

The following items should be considered when reviewing a variance request: 

1. Has the Applicant sufficiently demonstrated practical difficulties exist such that each of

following are true?

a. Strict application of code prohibits property owner from using Lake in reasonable

manner that is otherwise permitted by the code.

b. Granting a variance is within spirit and intent of the Code.

c. Plight of property owner is due to circumstances:

(1) Unique to property;

(2) Not created by property owner; and

(3) Not based solely on economic considerations.

d. Granting a variance does not alter essential character of the area.

2. Is the Applicant proposing a use not allowed under the code?

3. Would variance, if granted and with conditions imposed, adversely affect:

a. Purpose of Code?

b. Public health, safety, and welfare?

c. Reasonable access to or use of the Lake by public or riparian owners?

PUBLIC COMMENTS_________________________________________________________ 

In compliance with MN DNR General Permit 97-6098, the MN DNR, MCWD, the City of 

Minnetonka, and the general public were provided information regarding the application on 

September 8, 2023. City and agency comments were due by September 15, 2023. Comments 

received as of September 20, 2023, are summarized below. Any comments received after 

September 8, 2023, will be provided at the Board meeting for review.  

• There have been no agency comments regarding the application.

As of September 20, comments received by LMCD staff from the general public are summarized 

below:  

• There have been multiple comments received by LMCD Staff regarding both  support

and opposition to this variance. Those comments are included with this memo under

attachments or issued to the LMCD Board prior to the Public hearing.

PUBLIC HEARING____________________________________________________________ 

The public hearing provides an opportunity for interested individuals to present their views to the 

Board for consideration. This is an important part of reviewing the impact of a project. Only 



Application for Variance at, 16508 Grays Bay Blvd in Minnetonka 

LMCD Board Meeting September 27, 2023 

Page 4 

4 

items under the LMCD Code and Board authority may be considered as part of any approval or 

denial decision.  

The public hearing notice was published in the September 14, 2023, edition of the Sun Sailor 

(official newspaper) and the September 16, 2023, edition of the Laker Pioneer. On September 8 

2023, a public hearing notice was mailed to persons who reside upon or are owners of property 

within 350 feet of the Site. In addition, the Board packet was posted online and the agenda was 

posted on the LMCD bulletin board.  

RECOMMENDATION_________________________________________________________ 

If the board chooses to approve the variance, based on review of the Considerations of Variance 

factors, the minimum recommendations are provided for consideration. The Board may wish to 

consider other items.  

1. Ensure all watercrafts are contained within the BSU’s located at the site. In this case

meaning the designated watercraft size restriction

2. For the Northern side setbacks, maintain a minimum 0 foot-setback from shore as it

extends into the lake as indicated on the site plan.

3. For the Southern side setbacks, maintain a minimum 1.5 foot setback to 0.5 feet

respectively from shore as it extends into the lake.

4. The length of the dock structure and storage should be no longer than the proposed

100 feet from the 929.4 feet OHW

5. The width of the dock structure should be no greater than 3 feet, as was originally

approved

6. Allow four (4) BSUs for the Site, each BSU measuring a maximum 8.5 Feet in width

and 22 feet in length. Changing the BSU Size would require a Reconfiguration of a

Nonconforming Structure and new board approval.

7. Provide an updated site plan with final configuration and measurements as approved

by the Board, this includes all watercraft for the site, their respective BSUs, and

setbacks.

8. Apply standard variance conditions reflecting environmental, nuisances, maintenance,

etc.

BUDGET_____________________________________________________________________ 

N/A 

STRATEGIC PRIORITIES_____________________________________________________ 

Operational 

Effectiveness 

Clear & Timely 

Communications 

Effective 

Governance 
X 

Lake 

Protection 
Other 

ATTACHMENTS______________________________________________________________ 

1. LMCD Code Excerpts

2. Aerial Imagery of Site

3. Current Site Plan

4. Proposed Site Plan



Application for Variance at, 16508 Grays Bay Blvd in Minnetonka 

LMCD Board Meeting September 27, 2023 

Page 5 

5 

5. Variance Application

6. Current Variance and Historical Documents

7. Public Comments

8. Public Hearing Notice (Sun Sailor and Laker Pioneer)

9. Public Hearing Notice Mailing



Application for Variance at, 16508 Grays Bay Blvd in Minnetonka
LMCD Board Meeting September 

27, 2023 

Subd. 1. Generally. The dimensions of an authorized dock use area for sites bordering the 

Lake are determined in accordance with this Section. The authorized dock use area shall be 

measured from the point which forms the shoreline when the Lake is at elevation 929.4, National 

Geodetic Vertical Datum of 1929 (“NGVD”). The authorized dock use area includes the area on, 

under, and over the surface of the Lake. 

Subd. 2. Length. The length of the authorized dock use area is measured on a line parallel 

to the site side lines as extended into the Lake and is limited as provided in this subdivision. 

(a) General Limit. The length of an authorized dock use area extends into the Lake a

distance equal to the length of shoreline frontage of the site as measured at right

angles to the side site lines as extended into the Lake. The total length of the

authorized dock use area shall not extend beyond 100 feet, even if the site has more

than 100 feet of shoreline frontage, unless otherwise specifically provided in this

Section.

(b) Commercial Structures – August 30, 1978. The authorized dock use area for sites

with commercial uses that have a commercial structure that was in existence on

August 30, 1978 shall extend into the Lake a distance of 200 feet. The lakeward

extension of the authorized dock use area more than 100 feet from the shoreline

shall be limited to the distance from shore of the docks in existence on said date

and that portion of said docks more than 100 feet from the shoreline may not be

altered or expanded.

(c) Qualified Commercial Uses. The authorized dock use area for qualified commercial

marinas, qualified sailing school, and qualified yacht clubs extends into the Lake a

distance of 200 feet.

(d) Existing Site – February 5, 1970. The authorized dock use area for a site in

existence on February 5, 1970 shall be determined as follows:

(1) Over 40 feet of Frontage. If the site has a Lake frontage of 40 feet or more,

but less than 60 feet, the authorized dock use area extends into the Lake a

distance of 60 feet.

(2) Under 40 feet of Frontage. If the site has a Lake frontage of less than 40

feet, the authorized dock use area extends into the Lake to the point

necessary to reach a water depth of four feet, measured from 929.4 NGVD,

except that no such dock shall be located or extended more than 60 feet into

the Lake. Side setbacks requirements shall be observed unless the Board

issues a setback variance under Section 6-5.01.

LMCD Code Excerpts 

Section 2-3.03. Determination of Authorized Dock Use Area. 



Application for Variance at, 16508 Grays Bay Blvd in 
Minnetonka LMCD Board Meeting September 
27, 2023 

(e) Public Safety Docks. The authorized dock use area for dock facilities owned and

operated by state agencies, Hennepin County, the LMCD, or municipalities

bordering on the Lake and used exclusively for law enforcement, public safety, or

LMCD purposes extends into the Lake a distance of 125 feet.

Subd. 3. Width. The width of an authorized dock use area is determined in accordance with 

the provisions of this subdivision. 

(a) Setbacks. The width of an authorized dock use area is limited by the following

setbacks, which are measured from the side site lines as extended in the Lake:

For that portion of the length of the 

authorized dock use area which 

extends from the shore: 

The setback from the side site line as 

extended in the Lake shall be: 

Zero to 50 feet 10 feet 

50 to 100 feet 15 feet 

100 to 200 feet 20 feet 

Where boat slips open toward a side site line, the setback provided shall be at least 

equal to the slip depth, but shall not be less than 20 feet. 

(b) Setbacks Doubled. Setbacks shall be doubled for all multiple docks or mooring

areas and commercial single docks on each side where such structures are not

located adjacent to another multiple dock, mooring area, or commercial single

docks.

(1) Exception – May 3, 1978. Multiple docks, mooring areas, and commercial

single docks in existence on May 3, 1978 shall be considered nonconforming

structures and shall not be subject to setback doubling if such structures are not

expanded. The reconfiguration of the structure pursuant to Article 2, Chapter 8

shall not be considered an expansion.

(c) Sites with 50 feet of Width or Less – February 2, 1970. For a site in existence on

February 2, 1970 with a width of 50 feet or less, the authorized dock use are may

be expanded to a side setback limitation of five feet, provided that such setback in

no way impair access to neighboring docks.

(d) Canopies. Canopies must be setback from side site lines a minimum distance of

20 feet.  

Section 2-4.05. General Density Rule. 

Subd. 1. How Density is Determined. The number of restricted watercraft that may be 

stored at a site, which is referred to herein as restricted watercraft density, shall be determined in 

accordance with this Section and any applicable special density rules set out in Section 2-4.09. The 

restricted watercraft density for a site may be increased if a special density license is issued as 

provided in Section 2-4.11. For purposes of this Chapter, a site is considered to be used for mooring 

or docking more than the permitted number of restricted watercraft if a greater number of restricted 

watercraft than are allowed by this Chapter are moored, docked, anchored, or secured at the site, 



Application for Variance at, 16508 Grays Bay Blvd in Minnetonka LMCD 
Board Meeting 
September 27, 2023 

for any period of time, on three or more calendar days in any 14-day period. 

Subd. 2. General Density Rule. A site is allowed one restricted watercraft density for each 

50 feet of continuous shoreline. If the site has continuous shoreline greater than 100 feet and the 

shoreline measurement would result in the allowance of a fractional restricted watercraft density 

any fraction up to and including one-half shall be disregarded, and fractions over one-half shall be 

counted as one additional restricted watercraft density. 

Subd. 3. Compliance with Density. No docks or mooring areas shall be constructed, 

established or maintained that provide space for, or are used for, mooring or docking a greater 

number of restricted watercraft than is allowed under this Section unless authorized to do so by 

special density license issued in accordance with Sections 2-4.11 and 6-2.13. 

Section 2-4.09. Special Density Rules. 

The number of restricted watercraft stored at a site under the general density rules may be increased 

as provided in this Section. With respect to residential sites, the homestead or non-homestead status 

of property for ad valorem real estate tax purposes has no bearing on or application to this Section. 

Subd. 1. Additional Watercraft Density. Unless a greater number is authorized under this 

Section, up to four restricted watercraft may be moored or docked at a dock or mooring area located 

on any site if all of the conditions of this subdivision are met. 

(a) There must be one, and no more than one, single-family residential structure on

the site. If there is no residential structure on a site, any one off-lake lot, parcel, or other 

piece of property may be designated to be a part of one site by the owner for purposes of 

this subdivision if it: 

(1) Is legally subdivided and recorded in the office of the County Recorder;

(2) Adjoins the site or is separated from the site only by a public right-of-

way; 

(3) Is under common ownership and unified use with the site; and

(4) Is occupied by one single-family residential structure.

(b) The dockage rights at the site are owned exclusively by the owners of the lot

parcel or other piece of property on which the residential structure referred to in paragraph 

(a) of this subdivision is located.

(c) All of the restricted watercraft moored or docked at a dock or mooring at the

site must be owned by and registered to persons who live in the one residential structure 

referred to in paragraph (a) of this subdivision. 

Subd. 2. Sites in Existence on August 30, 1978. Unless a greater number is authorized by 

the provisions of this Section, up to two restricted watercraft may be moored or docked at any 

dock or mooring facility that is located on a site that was in existence on August 30, 1978. 

Section 6-5.01. Variances. 

Subd. 1. Authorized. Where practical difficulties occur or where necessary to provide 

access to persons with disabilities, the Board may permit a variance from the requirements of this 

Code or may require a variance from what is otherwise permitted by this Code, provided that such 

variance with whatever conditions are deemed necessary by the Board, does not adversely affect 

the purposes of this Code, the public health, safety, and welfare, and reasonable access to or use 

of the Lake by the public or riparian owners. Except as otherwise provided in this Code, all 



Application for Variance at, 16508 Grays Bay Blvd in Minnetonka LMCD Board 
Meeting 
September 27, 2023 

variances granted by the LMCD shall be governed by the provisions of this Section. 

Subd. 2. Unusual Configurations. Where the provisions of this Code would cause the 

authorized dock use area of two or more sites to overlap, or where there is any other unusual 

configuration of shoreline or extended lot lines, which causes a conflict between the owners of two 

or more adjacent or nearby sites as the use of the same area of the Lake for docks, mooring areas 

or other structures or for reasonable access thereto, the owner of any of the affected sites may 

apply to the Board for a variance. A variance may be to permit the Applicant to locate a dock, 

mooring area, or other structure in a location different from that permitted by this Code or to permit 

or require the owner of any adjacent or nearby site to do so. 

Subd. 3. Length Variances. The length limitations prescribed by this Code may be adjusted 

to allow the construction and maintenance of a dock in the Lake to a water depth of five feet, 

measured from 929.4 NGVD, at the outer end of such dock to provide adequate water depth for 

navigation and to protect the environmental quality or natural habitat of the water adjacent to the 

dock. 

Subd. 6. Criteria. The Board may grant a variance from the literal provisions of this Code 

in instances where the property owner can show practical difficulties exist by virtue of 

circumstances which are unique to the individual property or properties under consideration or to 

provide access to persons with disabilities. The Board may only grant a variance if the property 

owner is able to demonstrate that granting the variance will be in keeping with the spirit and intent 

of this Code, the plight of the property owner is due to circumstances unique to the property that 

were not created by the property owner, the proposed use is reasonable under the circumstances, 

and the variance, if granted, would not alter the essential character of the area. No variance may 

be granted to allow a use that is not permitted under this Code. The Board may impose conditions 

in the granting of variances to ensure compliance and to protect other riparian owners and users of 

the Lake. No variance for access for persons with disabilities shall be granted which allows or 

provides for the storage of a greater number of watercraft than otherwise would be permitted under 

this Code. 



Variance Application for Adjusted Dock Length and Side Setbacks 

Property: 16508 Grays Bay Blvd, Minnetonka, MN 55391 (Applicant Meadowbrook Boat Club) 

For illustrative purposes only. Source: Hennepin County Interactive Property Map, 09/08/2023 

16508 Grays Bay Blvd 

Gray’s Bay 



Variance Application for Adjusted Dock Length and Side Setbacks 

Property: 16508 Grays Bay Blvd, Minnetonka, MN 55391 (Applicant Meadowbrook Boat Club) 

For illustrative purposes only. Source: Hennepin County Interactive Property Map, 09/08/2023 

16508 Grays Bay Blvd 







LMCD, 5341 Maywood Rd, Ste 200, Mound, MN 55364    P: 952.745.0789    Fx: 952.745.9085    E: lmcd@lmcd.org    Rev.04032020 

VARIANCE APPLICATION 
LAKE MINNETONKA CONSERVATION DISTRICT 

For LMCD use: 
Fee Amount:  Check # ____   Date Received:  ____ 

1. CONTACT INFORMATION
Applicant: Title (Owner, Authorized Agent, etc.): 

Address:

City, State, Zip:

Phone:   Email: 

Property Owner (if different from applicant): 

Relationship to Property Owner:  

Address:  

City, State, Zip:  

Phone:   Email: 

2. PROPERTY INFORMATION
Site Address:

Abutting Lakeshore Property Owners (Name and Mailing Address)

North or West: 

South or East: 

Other affected parties: 

3. PROPOSED VARIANCE
Type of Variance:

State practical difficulties causing the variance to be required:

mailto:lmcd@lmcd.org


Variance Application Page 2 

LMCD, 5341 Maywood Rd, Ste 200, Mound, MN 55364    P: 952.745.0789    Fx: 952.745.9085    E: lmcd@lmcd.org     Rev. 04032020 

4. ATTACHMENTS
Documents listed below are required; check that they are attached:

 Locator map, county plat map    
 Certified Land Survey, Legal Description 
 Existing facility site plan  

 Proposed facility site plan with scaled  

Names & mailing addresses of owners 
within a 350-foot radius of the property. 
(See note below.)

***Names & Mailing Addresses: The LMCD provides notice of a public hearing, which is published and mailed 
to owners within 350 feet of the subject property. The applicant is required to obtain mailing labels from 
Hennepin County for property owners within a 350-foot radius of the site. Labels are now available online by 
visiting https://gis.hennepin.us/locatenotify/default.asp. Set the buffer distance to 350 feet and print the “mail 
list,” which includes both taxpayer and resident information. If the property is located in Carver County, 
contact the LMCD office for assistance.

Several of the required attachments can be combined into a single document. Absence of requested data 
may result in a processing delay or the application may be deemed incomplete. 

5. FEES
Application Fee (Non-refundable)   $250.00 
Deposit (Refundable, upon full compliance with the Code and extent of 
administrative, inspection and legal service required.) 

$250.00 

TOTAL FEE ENCLOSED (This fee is for processing of the application and 
does not entitle the applicant to a variance.) 

$500.00 

I certify that the information provided herein and the attachments hereto are true and correct; I understand that 
any variance granted may be revoked by the District for violation of the LMCD code. I agree to reimburse the 
District for any legal, surveying, engineering, inspection, maintenance or other expenses incurred by the District 
in excess of the amount of the application fee. I consent to permitting officers and agents of the District to enter 
the premises at reasonable times to investigate and to determine whether or not the Code of the District is being 
complied with. 

I agree to submit a certified, as-built survey upon completion of the docks. 

Applicant’s Signature: 

________________________________   ______________________________    ______________________ 
Name                                                       Title       Date 

Return to: 
Lake Minnetonka Conservation District 
5341 Maywood Road, Suite 200 
Mound, MN  55364 

drawing of docks on abutting and 
other affected dockage

mailto:lmcd@lmcd.org
https://gis.hennepin.us/locatenotify/default.asp










































LAKE MINNETONKA 
CONSERVATION DISTRICT 

PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 

7:00 PM, 
SEPTEMBER 27, 2023 

MEADOWBROOK BOAT 
CLUB VARIANCE

16508 GRAYS BAY BLVD, 
MINNETONKA, MN 55391

GRAY’S BAY, 
LAKE MINNETONKA

The Lake Minnetonka Conserva-
tion District (LMCD) will hold a pub-
lic hearing to consider a variance 
application from Meadowbrook 
Boat Club to adjust the dock length 
and dock use area, including side 
setbacks, located at 16508 Grays 
Bay Blvd, Minnetonka, MN 55391. 
All interested persons will be given 
an opportunity to comment. Details 
are available at the LMCD Office, 
5341 Maywood Road, Suite 200, 
Mound, MN 55364 or by calling 
(952) 745-0789.

The meeting will be held at Way-
zata City Hall, 600 Rice Street E, 
Wayzata, MN 55391. Information 
about meeting location and meet-
ing logistics will be available on 
the LMCD website, www.lmcd.org. 
Details are available at the LMCD 
Office, 5341 Maywood Road, Suite 
200, Mound, MN 55364 or by call-
ing (952) 745-0789.

Published in the
Sun Sailor 

September 14, 2023
1340424



www.lmcd.org • lmcd@lmcd.org

To preserve and enhance the “Lake Minnetonka experience.” 

DATE: September 8, 2023 

TO: Property Owner 

FROM: Thomas Tully, Environmental Administrative Technician 

SUBJECT:  Public Hearing Notice- Variance Meadowbrook Boat Club, Minnetonka, Gray’s Bay 

You are receiving this notice since Hennepin County property records indicate you own or reside 

upon property within 350 feet of a site being considered for a variance for an adjusted dock use 

area including side setback adjustments. The Lake Minnetonka Conservation District (LMCD) 

will hold a public hearing to consider the variance application. The site is located at 16508 Grays 

Bay Blvd in Minnetonka and has shoreline on Gray’s  Bay . The applicant is Meadowbrook 

Boat  Club. 

The applicant proposes to adjust the dock use area for the site as well as the setbacks and dock 

length. All interested persons will be given an opportunity to comment. An aerial image and 

proposed site plan are enclosed for your reference. 

Public Hearing Information 

A public hearing will be held at 7:00 PM, September 27, 2023. The items detailed above 

will be reviewed and considered for approval. All interested persons will be given an 

opportunity to comment. Alternatively, please submit comments in writing to the LMCD 

(address below) or by emailing staff at lmcd@lmcd.org. 

Those desiring to participate in the hearing may also email the Environmental Administrative 

Technician at ttully@lmcd.org , or to receive more information. The meeting place is Wayzata 

City Hall, 600 Rice Street, Wayzata, MN 55391. Information about meeting logistics will be 

available on the LMCD website, www.lmcd.org. 

Details are available at the LMCD Office, 5341 Maywood Road, Suite 200, Mound, MN 55364 

or by calling (952) 745-0789. 

http://www.lmcd.org/
mailto:lmcd@lmcd.org
file:///C:/Users/VSCHL/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/3675RE1E/lmcd@lmcd.org
http://www.lmcd.org/


Variance Application for Adjusted Dock Length and Side Setbacks 

Property: 16508 Grays Bay Blvd, Minnetonka, MN 55391 (Applicant Meadowbrook Boat Club) 

For illustrative purposes only. Source: Hennepin County Interactive Property Map, 09/08/2023 

16508 Grays Bay Blvd 

Gray’s Bay 



Variance Application for Adjusted Dock Length and Side Setbacks 

Property: 16508 Grays Bay Blvd, Minnetonka, MN 55391 (Applicant Meadowbrook Boat Club) 

For illustrative purposes only. Source: Hennepin County Interactive Property Map, 09/08/2023 

16508 Grays Bay Blvd 





www.lmcd.org • lmcd@lmcd.org 
To preserve and enhance the “Lake Minnetonka experience” 

ITEM 15A 

DATE: September 27, 2023 (Prepared September 21, 2023) 

TO: LMCD Board of Directors 

FROM: Jim Brimeyer, Interim Executive Director 

SUBJECT: Special Permit Process 

ACTION 

NONE 

BACKGROUND 

There has been some discussion about the issuance of Special Permits revolving around which 
agency reviews and approves the request. The Director, per LMCD code, is the issuing office 
unless delegated to the Water Patrol. That delegation to the Water Patrol took place in 2004. 

In several discussions with the Water Patrol, the requests for Special Permits can be as many as 
several hundred. The current interim Director would prefer not to deal with that number of 
requests. 

So, the Water Patrol and the Interim have agreed to an understanding that if any request has the 
potential to affect LMCD rules/regulations or might seem to have a significant impact on safety 
issues on the lake, the water patrol will advise the LMCD staff of the request. 

Staff believes this is the best arrangement at the present time and will notify the board of any 
requests that might fall into the “significant impact” category. 

The Board always has the option to memorialize by amending the relevant code.  
To that end, Section 6-5.03, Sub 2 Issuing Authority could be amended as follows: 

If LMCD retains the authority to issue special event permits, The Executive Director is  
authorized to issue such permits administratively. If the Sheriff is the issuing authority, “per  
Resolution No 111 adopted October 27, 2004”, the Sheriff is authorized to issue such permit 
 upon consideration of the review criteria “contained in Subd. 3. Review Criteria Para (a) 
through Para (p) of the LMCD Code”. 

http://www.lmcd.org/
mailto:lmcd@lmcd.org


www.lmcd.org • lmcd@lmcd.org 
To preserve and enhance the “Lake Minnetonka experience” 

X X X X

Special Permit Process 
LMCD Board of Directors 
September 27, 2023 
Page 2 

STRATEGIC PRIORITIES____________________________________
Docks, 
Applications, Lake Use, Lake Operational 
Licenses, Safety Protection Effectiveness Other 
Surface Water 
Management 

ATTACHMENT 

N/A

http://www.lmcd.org/
mailto:lmcd@lmcd.org

	20230927 Agenda DRAFT
	Item 6 LMCD Board Meeting Minutes DRAFT 20230913
	Item 7A Audit of Vouchers
	Item 7B - Findings of Fact  4290 Cottonwood DRAFT
	Item 7C Wayzata Panoway Project Memo
	Item 7C1 - Findings of Fact Wayzata_V5
	Item 10A -Meadowbrook
	MBC_Variance-Application - Copy.pdf
	VARIANCE APPLICATION
	LAKE MINNETONKA CONSERVATION DISTRICT
	________________________________   ______________________________    ______________________                   Name                                                       Title       Date

	Application Fee (Non-refundable)
	Return to:
	Lake Minnetonka Conservation District
	5341 Maywood Road, Suite 200
	Mound, MN  55364


	Item 15A Special Permits
	ACTION
	BACKGROUND
	STRATEGIC PRIORITIES____________________________________
	ATTACHMENT


	Applicant: Jason Johnson
	Title Owner Authorized Agent etc: President of Boat Club
	Address: 16648 Meadowbrook Ln
	City State Zip: Wayzata, MN 55391
	Phone: 612-803-1647
	Email: Meadowbrookboatclub@gmail.com
	Property Owner if different from applicant: Meadowbrook Boat Club
	Relationship to Property Owner: Homeowners Association President
	Address_2: 16648 Meadowbrook Ln
	City State Zip_2: Wayzata, MN 55391
	Email_2: Meadowbrookboatclub@gmail.com
	Phone 1: 612-803-1647
	Site Address: 16508 Grays Bay Blvd, Minnetonka MN 55391, PID 0811722430032
	North or West 1: Calm Bay LLC, 16502 Gray's Bay BLVD, WAYZATA MN 55391
	North or West 2: 
	South or East 1: Grays Bay Holdings LLC, 21 MEADOWHAWK LANE, LAS VEGAS NV 89135
	South or East 2: 
	Other affected parties 1: 
	Other affected parties 2: 
	Type of Variance: Length of dock, side setbacks
	State practical difficulties causing the variance to be required 2: The subject properties dimensions (PID 0811722430032) prohibits us from utilizing our existing license to moor boats on the property per the LMCD guidelines
	State practical difficulties causing the variance to be required 3: 
	State practical difficulties causing the variance to be required 4: 
	State practical difficulties causing the variance to be required 5: 
	Name: Jason Johnson
	Title: President/Commodore
	Date: 6/26/2023
	Check Box1: Yes
	Check Box2: Yes
	Check Box3: Yes
	Check Box7: Yes
	Check Box8: Yes


